

PARISH OF GREAN – BARONIES OF COONAGH AND CLANWILLIAM

PARISH OF GREAN - BARONY OF COONAGH

INDEX

	Page
Grean Ph.	1
Townlands	
Ballincassa Ballynagally Ballytrasna Ballytoneen Bunavie	5 2 3 6 4
Cloghaderreen Corelish East Coologe	9 7 8
Derk Dromeenboy Dromlara	10 12 11
Garrane Beg Garrane More Garrison Glebe of Moymore Glebe of Pallas Gortnacoolagh	17 18 19 14 15
Kilduff Knockaunroe Knockderk Knockgrean Knocknacrohy	24 22 2 3 20 21
Linfield	25
Moymore Mountcatherine	26 27
Nicker	28
Pallas Pallas Hill Plaukarauka	30 29 31
Race	32 `

INDEX (contd.)

	Page
Sunglen Sunville	33 34
Treanmanagh	35

Parish.of Grean

-- B. S.

Páilis Gréine, the palace of the Lady Grian (a mythological being).

Paráiste Gréine, Grean Parish.

Grean

-- J. C'D.
-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824
-- Revd. Wm. Scott, Rector
-- Inhabitants
-- Revd. J. Mahony, P,P,
Greane

-- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Down Survey

This parish is situated about 9 miles S.E. of the City of Limerick. It is bounded on the E. by the parishes of Ballynaclogh, Cluggan and Templebredon; N. by the phs. of Tuogh and Doon; W. by Aglishcormick Ph. and by Grean Ph. in Clanwilliam Barony; and S. by Kilteely Ph. and the Co. Tipperary.

This parish is about $3\frac{1}{2}$ miles long and $2\frac{1}{2}$ miles broad, & contains 5,680 acres. It consists of good land, and is very level except Fallas Hill, Enockgrean and Knockderk, which are beautiful green pasturages, famed for their splendid prospect. The parish is well supplied with roads. In its N. end is the New Line from Limerick to Tipperary, and through it leads another from Cappamore to Pallas, etc.

Townlands

Ballynagally

-- B. S.

2

Baile na gCailleach, town of the nuns.

Ballynagally - J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

Ballynegullagh -- Acts of Settlement &c.,

Ballynagally (contd.)

This td. is situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Sunglen Td.; W. by Aglishcormick Ph.; N. by Knocknacrohy Td.; and S. by Coologe Td.

It contains 81 acres, which are arable and without lime-Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. proprietor Maurice C. Moore, Esq has it let to 4 tenants by leases ending in 1861 at £2 12s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s.9d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Ballytrasna

-- B. S.

3

+

Baile Tarsna, pronounced locally Baile Tasna, i.e., Cross-town.

Ballytrasna

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Tithe Composition Book 1833

Ballytarsna -- Barony Map

-- Acts of Settlement &c. Ballytrasny Ballitarsny

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Glen Td.; W. by Killeenavarra Td.; N. by Corelish Td.; and S. by Knocknacrohy Td.

It contains 342 acres, which are arable, without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The Proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Brasmus Smyth, Esq.", have it let per their agent James Poe, Esq. to John Gleeson, Esq., by a lease ending in May 1840; and he again for same tenure to 13 tenants at £4 4s. per acre and in farms of 21 to 2 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. 1s.8d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. The prevailing names are O'Briens and Hays.

Bunavigh

-- B. S.

4

Bun a' Bhadha ?. Local pronunciation - bun-a-voy.

Bunavie

-- J. O'D.

Bunavi

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

Banavay

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. W. Scott Rector

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Ballynaclogh; W. by Ballytrasna Td.; N. by Linfield Td.; and S. by Ballynaclogh Ph.

It contains 254 acres, which are arable and without

Bunavigh (contd.)

limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Col. Wyndham O'Brien has it let per his agent Thomas Crowe, Esq. to 11 tenants at will and at £2 3s. per acre, in farms of 25 to 2 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe included in the rent. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names - O'Briens.

Ballankassaan

-- R. S.

5

ł

Baile an Chasa, town of the twisting.

Rallincassa

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. W. Scott. Rector -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

Ballynkassa

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Derk Td.; W. by Knockaunroe Td.: S. by Knockderk Td.: and N. by Cloghaderreen Td.

This Td. contains 67 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Maurice C. Moore, Esq. has it let to 3 tenants by leases of one life at £2 6s. per acre. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 2s.3d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. and is bought by the tenantry.

Ballyvoneen

-- B. S.

Baile Mhóinin, town of the little bog.

Ballyvoneen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Barony Map

Ballyvorneen -- Civil Survey 1654-56 Ballinvonine

Ballyvoneen -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Ballyvonine

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Nicker Td.; W. by Linfield Td.; S. by Ballynaclogh Ph.: and N. by Dromeenboy Td.

It contains 170 acres, which are arable, with some limestone in it. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Michael L. Apjohn, Esq. has it let to 4 tenants by leases of two lives or 31 years, at £3 to £2 6s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.7d. per acre \frac{1}{2} yearly. Tithe 1s.10d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Coarlish

-- B. S.

7

ł

Cor Lis, hill of the fort

Corelish

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Barony Map

Corlish

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Coherlish Corleish -- Sur. & Val. Report 1824 `

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Linfield Td.; W. by Dromkeen Ph.; N. by Tuogh Ph.; and S. by Ballytrasna Td.

Contains 169 acres, which are arable and with some limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Col. Wyndham C'Brien has it let per his agent by a lease of one life at 14s.9d. per acre to Dr. F. Harding, and he again per his agent Mr. David Fitzgerald to 14 tenants by leases of one life besides 9 other poorer sort at will, and all at £3 3s. to £2 15s. per acre, and in farms of 30 to 1½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.2d. per do.

Coologue

-- B. S.

8

Cúileóg, a corner or angle, a piece of land in the corner of a glen. (Well understood). O'D.

Coologe

-- J. O'D.

Coologue -- Sur. &

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824
-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Inhabitants

-- Tithe Compn. Book

Culloge Ullicke -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Cloghaderreen Td.; W. by the Ph. of Aglishcormick; N. by the td. of Ballynagally; and S. by Kilteely Ph.

Contains 231 acres, of which about 5 are bog, and the rest arable with some limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Maurice C. Moore, Esq. has it let to ? tenants by leases of 3 lives at £3 3s. per acre, and in farms of 40 to 3 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names - Ryans.

Cloghaderreen

-- B. S.

C

Cloch a' Doirín, stone or stone building of the little oak wood.

Cloghaderreen (contd.)

Cloghaderreen

Cloughaderreen

Cloughadirreen Cloughadireen

-- J. O'D.

-- Barony Map

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834
-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

Situated on the S. side of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by by Ballynaclogh Ph.; W. by Coologe Td.; N. by Sunglen Td.; and S. by the Td. of Ballincassa.

Contains 402 acres, which are arable and without lime-stone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor Maurice C. Moore, Esq. has it let to 8 tenants by leases of 1 life or 21 years at £2 15s. to £2 4s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 3s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Frevailing Names - Ryans.

Derk

-- B. S.

10

Deirc, a cave or grotto.

Derk

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

Dirk

-- Barony Map

Dercke

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Treammanagh Td.; W. by Enockderk Td.; N. by the Td. of Plaukarauka; and S. by the Ph. of Cluggan.

Contains 372 acres, which are arable, and some planted with ornamental trees. Soil deep, with some limestone, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Hiffernan Considine, Esq. has it in his own occupation as demesne, etc.

Drumlara

-- B. S.

11

Drom Lara, mare's back.

Dromlara

Drumlara

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Nahony, P.P.

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Inhabitants

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Presentment Book 1834

Dromlara

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Drumlara (contd.)

Situated in the N.E. of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Oola; W. by Garranemore Td.; N. by Doon Ph.; and S. by the Ph. of Ballynaclogh.

Contains 352 acres, which are arable, without limestone in it. Soil partly light and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Thos. Apjohn, Esq. has part of it in his own occupation, and the rest let to 3 tenants at will and at £1 17s. to £1 7s. per acre, tithe included. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre 2 yearly. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Drumminneenbwee

-- B. S.

12

ŧ

Druimin Buidhe, the yellow little ridge.

Dromeenboy

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824 Drummeenbue

-- Presentment Book 1834 -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Druminbee

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Civil Survey 1654-56 DrumInyneboy

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Garranemore Td.; W. by Linfield Td.; M. by Tuogh Td.: and S. by the Td. of Ballyvoneen.

Contains 152 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light and partly wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Michael Lloyd Apjohn, Esq. has it let to 4 tenants by leases of 1 life at £1 8s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre & yearly, and Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Glyn

-- B. S.

13

Gleann, a valley.

Glen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Glinn

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. W. Scott. Rector

Glen

Glyn

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the td. of Fallas Hill; W. by Ballytrasna Td.; N. by the td. of Gortnanuv (Ballynaclogh Ph.); and S. by Knockgrean Td.

Glyn (contd.)

Contains 128 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Col. Wyndham O'Brien has it let by a lease for ever at 7s.6d. per acre to Hiffernan Colsidine, Esq., and he again to 1 tenant at £3 per acre.

Glebe of Moymore

-- B.S.

14

Muigh Mór, the great plain. O'D.

Glebe of Moymore

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the centre of the parish, and is bounded on the E. and S. by Pallas Td., and on the W. and N. by Moymore Td.

This Glebe contains 11 acres, which are arable. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The Glebe House was built in 1833 at the expense of £1,000, of which £700 was from the Ecclesiastical Board, and the remainder from the proprietor Revd. Wm. Scott to be reimbursed to him. It is 3 stories high.

Glebe of Pallas

-- B. S.

15

Páilis, a palace, a fort.

Situated in the N.W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. and S. by the Td. of Pallas, and on the W. and N. by the Td. of Sunglen.

This Glebe contains 4 acres, which are arable. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Revd. Wm. Scott, Rector, has it let to 4 tenants at £6 per acre, Co. Cess and Tithe included. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

Gurtnacoolough

-- B. S.

16

Gort na Culach, field of the corner or angle.

Gortnacoolagh

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.F.

-- Barony Map

Gurtnacoolah

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Treanmanagh Td.; W. by Cloghaderreen Td.; W. by Ballynaclogh Ph.; and S. by Derk Td.

Contains 44 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

Gurtnacoolough (contd.)

The proprietor Maurice C. Moore, Esq. has it let to 2 tenants by leases of one life or 21 years at £3 16s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s.8d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought.

Gurraunbeg

-- B. S.

17

Garrán, a shrubbery.

Little Garrane.

Garranebeg

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Com=n Bk. 1833

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

Gurraunbeg

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. J. M hony, P.P.

Garran)
Garrane)

-- Acts of Settmt. &c.

Situated in the E. of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Ballynaclogh Ph.; W. by the Td. of Garranemore; N. by Dromlara Td.; and S. by Kilduff Td.

Contains 32 acres, which are arable, with some limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Michael L. Apjohn, Esq. has it let to 2 tenants by leases of 3 lives or 31 years at £2 5s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe in gross £1 5s. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Gurraunmore

-- B. S.

18

Big Garrane Garrán, a shrubbery.

Garranemore

-- J. C'D.

Gurraunmore Garranemore -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P. -- Revd. Wm. Scott, Rector

Gurrane

-- Barony Map

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by the tds. of Garranebeg and Dromlara; W. by Nicker Td.; N. by the Ph. of Tuogh; and S. by the Td. of Moymore.

Contains 108 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Erasmus Smyth, Esq.", have it let per their agent to D. O'Grady, Esq., by leases ending in 1840, and he again to 28 tenants for same tenure at £1 8s. to 19s.10d. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. per acre ½ yearly, and Tithe 2s.2d.

Gurraunmore (contd.)

2s.2d. per acre. Bog very scarce. Frevailing Names - Ryans.

Garrason

-- B. S.

19

Gairisiún, a garrison.

Garrison

-- J. O'D.

Garrason

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824 -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Ballynaclogh Ph.; W and N. by Pallas Td.; and S. by Race Td.

Contains 167 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Michael Lloyd Apjohn, Esq. has it let to Mrs. Gubbins at £3 13s. 10d. per acre by leases ending in 1850. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog very scarce, and bought for fuel. Trevailing Names - Ryans.

Knockgreana

-- B. S.

20

Cnoc Gréine, the hill of the Lady Grian, of whom curious stories are told.

Knockgrean

-- J. O'D.

Knockgrein

-- Revd. J. Mahony. P.P.

Knockgreana

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Knockgrean

-- Barony Map

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the West of the parish and is bounded on the E. by Pallas Hill Td.; W. by Enocknacrohy Td.; N. by Glen Td.; and S. by Sunglen Td.

Contains 88 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Villiers Cripps, Esq. has it let by a lease for ever to John Howly, Esq., and he again by a similar tenure to Robert Ivers, Esq. at £1 10s. per acre.

Knocknacreha

-- B.S.

21

Cnoc na Croiche, hill of the Gallows.

Knocknacrohy

-- J. O'D.

Knocknacrohe

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824 -- Presentment Book 1834

Knocknacrougha, or) Revd. J. Mahony, P.F. Gallowshill

Knocknacreha (contd.)

Gallowshill

-- Inhabitants

According to tradition, one of the O'Briens had a Gallows here, on which he used to hang any of the inhabitants in his jurisdiction upon the commission of the slightest crime.

This townland is situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Knockgrean Td.; W. and N. by Ballytrasna Td.; and S. by Ballynagally Td.

It contains 196 acres, which are arable. Soil very light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Villiers Cripps, Esq. has it let by a lease for ever at 7s.6d. per acre to Counsellor John Howly, and he again by same tenure to Robert Ivers. Esq. at £1 10s. per acre, who has it also let to 4 tenants by leases ending in 1845 and 1860 at £3 to £2 15s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.4d. to 1s,8d. per acre & yearly. Tithe 1s.5d. per acre.

Knockanrooa

-- B. S.

22

Cnocán Ruadh, red hillock.

Knockaunroe

Knockanroe

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. W. Scott. Rector

-- Inhabitants

Knockroe -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Knockrue -- Barony Map

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Ballincassa Td.; W. by Kilteely Ph.; N. by Coologe Td.; and S. by Knockderk Td.

Contains 110 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Maurice C. Moore, Esq. has it let to 6 tenants by leases of 1 life or 21 years at £2 66. to £3 3s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. vailing Names - Reals (sic. Ryans?).

Knockderk

-- B.S.

23

Cnoc Deirc, hill of the cave or grotto.

Knockderk -- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. W. Scott. Rector.

-- Barony Map ·

Enockdirk.

Knockderk

-- B. S.

Contd.

Knockdirk

-- Barony Map

Cnockdercke -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Derk Td.; W. by Kilteely Ph.; N. by Ballincassa Td.; and S. by the Td. of Knockalagan in the Ph. of Templebredon.

Contains 412 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Erasmus Smyth, Esq.", have it let per their agent to Darby O'Grady, Esq. by a lease expiring in 1845, and he again to 2 tenants at will and at £2 10s. per acre (retaining a portion of it in his own possession). Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly, and Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Kilduff

-- B. S.

24

Cill Dubh, black church.

Kilduff

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P. -- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Inhabitants

Killduffe

-- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Td. of Mountcatherine and the Ph. of Ballynaclogh; W. by Moymore Td.; N. by Garranebeg Td.; and S. by the tds. of Pallas and Garrison.

Contains 167 acres, which are arable and with limestone. Soil deep and partly wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Erasmus Smyth, Esq.", have it let per their agent to Mrs. Fitzmaurice Hunt by a lease ending in 1840 at £1 10s. per acre, and she again for same tenure to 30 tenants at £3 per acre and in farms of 40 to $1\frac{1}{2}$ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is scarce.

Lynnfield

-- B. S.

25

Linfield

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Presentment Book 1834
-- Darby O'Grady, Esq.

Lynnfield (contd.)

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Ballyvoneen Td.; W. by Corelish Td.; N. by Tuogh Ph.; and S. by the Td. of Bunavie.

Contains 334, which are arable, and with some limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax; the latter was so good in old times that the townland took its name from it. The proprietor Michael Lloyd Apjohn, Esq. has it let, about half of it to Darby O'Grady, Esq., as a demesne at £5 per acre, and the rest to 5 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £1 18s. per acre and in farms of 10 to 15 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s. 8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought.

Moymore

-- B. S.

26

Muigh Mór, the great plain.

Moymore

-- J. O'D.

- -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.
- -- Revd. W. Scott, Rector
- -- Inhabitants

Moeghmore —— Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by the tds. of Pallas and Kilduff; W. by the Td. of Pallas Hill; N. by Garranemore Td.; and S. by Pallas Td.

Contains 122 acres, which are arable, with some limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Erasmus Smyth, Esq.", have it let per their agent to 15 tenants by leases ending in 1840 at £3 to £2 15s. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Mountcatherine

-- B.S.

27

Mountcatherine

- -- J. O'D.
- -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.
- -- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.
- -- Barony Map

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Ballynaclogh; W. and S. by Kilduff Td.; and N. by Garranebeg Td.

Contains 18 acres, which are arable, with limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor Michael L. Apjohn, Esq. has it let by a

Mountcatherine (contd.)

lease for ever at 2s.6d. per acre to Michael Smithwick, Esq., and he again to Henry Smithwick, Esq. by a lease of lives renewable for ever at £5 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre.

Nicker

-- B. S.

28

Coinicér, a rabbit warren.

Nicker

-- J. O'D.

recté Conickere.

Nicker

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P. -- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. and S. by the Td. of Garranemore; W. by Bunavie Td.; and N. by Dromeenboy Td.

Contains 195 acres, which are arable, and with limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Michael L. Apjohn, Esq., has it let to 5 tenants by leases of 3 lives and 31 years at £4 to £3 per acre; under 3 of the above tenants are 20 others at will and at £4 to £4 10s. per acre, in farms of 10 to 1½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s.2d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Names - Dwyers.

Pallas Hill

-- B. S.

29

Cnoc na Páilise, hill of Pallas.

Pallas Hill

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Pallis

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector -- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

Pallice

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the centre of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Moymore Td.; W. by the Tds. of Glen and Knockgrean; N. by Nicker Td.; and S. by Sunglen Td.

Contains 128 acres, which are chiefly grazing and pasture.

Pallas Hill (contd.)

Soil light and gravelly, with some limestone. The proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Erasmus Smyth, Esq.," have it let to Thomas Apjohn, Esq., at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre.

Pallas

-- B. S.

30

Páilis Gréine, the palace or residence of the enchantress Grian.

Pallas

-- J. O'D.

Pallas Grein

-- Barony Map
-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Pallis

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833 -- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

Pallice

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c. 1666-1684.

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Garrison Td.; W. by Sunglen Td.; N. by Moymore Td.; and S. by Cloghadereen Td.

Contains 167 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietors, the "Governors of Schools founded by Erasmus Smyth, Eas.", have it let per their agent to 52 tenants by leases expiring in May 1840 at £3 15s. per acre and in farms of 12 to 11 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 3s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names - O'Briens.

Plaskaraaka

-- B. S.

31

Plác a Ráca ?

Plá Cathráca ? Plá = faithche, a green. Cathráca?

Plaukarauka

-- J. C'D.

Plaakaraaka

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Placaraca

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833 -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Plackaracka

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the N.E. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Oola Ph.; W. and N. by Ballynaclogh Ph.; & S. by the Td. of Treanmanagh.

Contains 134 acres, which are arable and with some lime-

Plaakaraaka (contd.)

stone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor, Hiffernan Consadine, Esq., has it let by a lease for ever at £2 12s. 6d. per acre, to Mrs. Edmd. O'Maher, and she again to 2 tenants by leases of lives renewable for ever at £3 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s.4d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry.

Race

-- B. S.

32

Race

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Ballynaclogh Ph.; W. and S. by the Td. of Cloghaderreen; and N. By Garrison Td.

Contains 49 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Laurice C. Moore, Esq. has it let by a lease of 1 life or 21 years to 2 tenants at £3 13s. 10d. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

Sunglen

__ B. S.

33

Spidéal is the Irish name of this townland. Sunglen is a new-fangled English name. O'D.

Sunglen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Sunlin

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

Sunland -- Barony Map

Situated in the S.W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by the tds. of Pallas and Pallas Glebe; W. by Ballynagally Td.; N. by Knockgrean Td.; and S. by Coologe Td.

Contains 132 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Villiers Cripps, Esq. has it let by a lease for ever to John Howly, Esq., and he again per his agent Mr. Henry O'Shea to 4 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s.4d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Sunville

-- B. S.

34

Sun here is taken from Cnoc Greine, which is wrongly understood to mean the "Hill of the Sun", its true meaning. being the "Hill of the Lady Grian".

Sunville

- -- J. O'D.
- -- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P. -- Revd. W. Scott, Rector
- -- Inhabitants

Situated in the N.E. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Dromlara Id.; W. by Garrahemore Id.; N. by the Ph. of Tuogh; and S. by Dromlara Td.

Contains 38 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Thomas Apjohn, Esq. has it let to Thomas Kerney, Esq., by a lease for ever at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. per acre & yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre.

Treenmana

--- B. S.

35

Trian Meadhanach, the middle third.

Treanmanagh

-- J. O'D.

Treenmana

-- Barony Map -- Inhabitants

Triermana

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector -- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

Trienmeanagh

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Treenmanagh

-- Acts of Settmt. &c. 1666-1684

٠٠,

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Cluggan Ph.; W. by Derk Td.; N. by Flaukarauka Td.; and S. by Templebredon Ph.

Contains 225 acres, which are arable, without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Hiffernan Consadine, Esc. has it let to Roger Scully, Esq. at £1 7s. 6d. per acre, in whose own occupation part of it is, and the remainder is sublet by leases ending in 1850 to 3 tenants at £4 4s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.cd. per acre & yearly. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

End of the Parish of Grean, Barony of Coonagh

PARISH OF GREAN, BARONY OF CLANWILLIAM

PARISH OF GREAN ! BARONY OF CLANWILLIAM

INDEX

	Page
Parish of Grean	1
Townlands	
Ardroe	2
Boherroe	3
Corelish (West)	4
Curraghaveara	5
Deerpark	6
Drombane	*7
Dromkeen	8
Killeenavera	9
Longstone	10
Mountsion	11

Ph. of Grean

-- B. S.

For name, see Ph. of Grean, Barony of Coonagh.

This parish is situated about 8 miles S.E. of the City of Limerick. It is bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Grean in the Bary. of Coonagh; N. by the phs. of Tuogh and Abington; W. by the phs. of Caherconlish and Dromkeen; and S. by Aglishcormick Ph.

It is about $1\frac{1}{2}$ miles long and 1 mile broad, and contains 1,511 acres, statute measure. It is level, and part of the road leading from Limerick to Tipperary passes through its N.W. end.

Townlands

Ardrooa

-- Ard Ruadh, red height or hill.

Ardroe

-- J. O'D.

Ardroca (contd.)

Ardroe

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833 -- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Revd. E. Walsh, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Ardrue Ardrooa -- Barony Map

-- Boundary Surveyor

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Dromkeen Ph.; W, by Caherconlish Ph.; N. by Curraghaveara Td.; and S. by Longstone Td.

Contains 222 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Thos. P. Maunsell, Esq. has it let per his agent Revd. Thos. Atkinson to 5 tenants by leases of 1 life at £1 3s. to £2 0s. per acre, and they again to 5 others at will and at £1 16s. to £2 10s. per acre, in farms of from 33 to 16 and 1½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly, and tithe 1s. to 4d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought.

Boherrooa

-- B. S.

3

Bothar Ruadh, red road.

Boherroe

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Revd. E. Walsh, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Boherue

-- Barony Map

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Ballytrasna Td.; W. by Longstone Td.; N. by Killeenavera Td.; and S. by Aglishcormick Ph.

Contains 121 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Walter H. Burgh has it let per his agent W. Griffith, Esq. to 6 tenants by leases of 1 life & 21 years at £2 12s. per acre, in farms of 30 to 6 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.9d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

Coarlish

-- B.S.

4

Vid. Coarlish, Bary. of Coonagh.

Corelish

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the E. end of the parish, and is bounded on

Coarlish (contd.)

the E. by Corelish Td., Bary. of Coonagh; W. by Mountsion Td.; N. by Pallasbeg in the Ph. of Tuogh; and S. by Deerpark Td.

Contains, 266 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light and partly gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Col. Wyndham O'Brien has it let by a lease of 1 life to Dr. F. Harding, and he again per his agent David Fitzgerald, Esq. to 8 tenants by leases of 1 life besides 12 poorer sort of tenants at will and all at £2 10s. to £3 per acre, and in farms of 30 to 1½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly, and Tithe 1s.4d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry.

Curraghavayra

-- B. S.

5

Currach Ui Mheara, O'Meara's moor.

Curraghaveara Curraghavera Croghvera -- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. E. Walsh, P.P.

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Dromkeen Td.; W. by Caherconlish Ph.; N. by Moanroe Td. (Dromkeen Ph.); and S. by Ardroe Td.

Contains 67 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Jos. Freeman, Esq. has it let per his agent Thos. Leahy, Esq. to Mr. Thos. O'Brien by a lease of 2 lives at the gross rent of £18. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly, and Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog very scarce.

Deerpark

-- B. S.

6

Deerpark

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. E. Walsh, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Corelish Td.; W. by Dromkeen Td.; N. by Corelish Td.; and S. by the Td. of Killeenavera.

Contains 45 acres, which are arable and with limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor walter H. Burgh, Esq. has it let per his agent Wm. Griffith, Esq. to 1 tenant at will, and at £4 per acre.

Deerpark (contd.)

Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre & yearly. Tithe 2s.4d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought.

Drumbaun

-- B. S.

Drom Ban. white ridge.

Drombane

-- J. O'D.

-- Acts of Settmt. &c. 1666-1684

Drumbane

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833 -- Revd. E. Walsh, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Drombawn

-- Barony Map

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Tuogh Ph.; N. by Abington Ph.; W. by Caherconlish Ph.; and S. by Mountsion Td.

Contains 219 acres, which are all arable and without limestone. Soil deep and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Wm. Hartigan, Esq. has it let to Messrs. Geo. and Robt. Bradshaw by a lease of 1 life, and they again to 10 tenants for same tenure in farms of 30 to 6 acres at £2 to £1 16s. per acre (besides the above there are 8 poor householders). Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.5d. per acre & yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog very scarce and bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names -Ryans.

Drumkeen

-- B. S.

8

Drom Caoin, the beautiful ridge.

Dromkeen

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val Report 1824 -- Fresentment Book 1834

-- Revd. E. Walsh. F.P.

-- Barony Map

Drumkeen Droumkeen -- Inhabitants

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. and N. by Dromkeen Ph.; S. by Ardroe Td.; and W. by Caherconlish Ph.

Contains 112 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly light and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Walter H. Burgh, Esq. has it let per his agent to 3 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £2 10s. to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.2d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

44

Cillin a' Mhaora, little church of the steward.

Killeenavera

-- J. O'D.

-- Hiffn. Considine. Esq.

-- Fresentment Book 1834

Killeenevera - Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. Wm. Scott, Rector -- Revd. E. Walsh. P.P.

-- Down Survey

Killnevare Killinavera

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Ballytarsna Td.; W. by Dromkeen Ph.; N. by Deerpark Td.; and S. by Boherroe Td.

Contains 129 acres. which are arable and with some limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Col. Wyndham O'Brien has it let by a lease for ever at 7s.6d. per acre to Hiffernan Consadine, Esq., and he again to 3 tenants by leases ending in 1850 at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre & yearly, and Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Longstone

-- B. S.

10

Clock Fhada, long stone.

Longstone

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. E. Welsh, P.P.

-- Revd. W. Scott. Rector

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Boherroe Td.; N. and W. by Ardroe Td.; and S. by the Ph. of Aglishcormick.

Contains 91 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Thos. F. Maunsell, Esq. has it let to 3 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. This townland has taken its name from a Cromlech in the S.W. corner standing upright and about 6 feet high by 4 feet broad.

Mountsion

-- B. S.

11

Mountsion (contd.)

Mountsion

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Fresentment Book 1834

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1833

-- Revd. W. Scott, Rector

-- Revd. E. Walsh, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Mount Sion

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the M. end of the parish, and is bounded on the M. by Corelish Td.; W. by Dromkeen Ph.; N. by Drombane Td.; and S. by Deerpark Td. in the Ph. of Dromkeen.

Contains 177 acres, which are arable and with some limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Wm. Hartigan, Esq. has it let to Mr. Robert Bradshaw at £1 8s. per acre by a lease of 1 life, and he again for same tenure to 6 tenants at £3 to £2 15s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.6d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry.

End of the Parish of Grean, Barony of Clanwilliam

PARISHES OF GREAN

BARONIES OF COONAGH AND CLANWILLIAM, CO. LIMERICK

MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES

PARISHES OF GREAN - MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES

INDEX

	Page
Barna (Village of)	27
Carrickanaffrin Carrickaneahy Carrickcollum Carrickleagh Clashatloe	24 22 2 3 26 5
Derk Cottage Derk House	18 18
Glenatruhaun	15
Keating's Well Kilduff Castle Knockaunaguagh Knockseefin	28 31 8 6
Landscape (House) Linfield House	20 3
Moat of Pallas Mount Catherine House	32 1 9
Newpallis Nicker Chapel	2 30
Pallas Grean (Village) Patrick's Well	29 9
Rath Cree	3 3
Skaghaphreaghaun Sunville House	7 2 1
Templenacarriga Toberagaddy Toberagarraunbaun Toberalunaght Toberatassony Toberheela Tobernagloria Tobernarughilla Tobernaskeha	4 11 16 17 14 10 12 13 25

PARISHES OF GREAN - MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES

Derk Cottage

-- Inhabitants

1

See name of townland. J. O'D.

W. side of the road from Pallas Grean to Emly, and on the N. side of the Village of Palatinestreet.

This cottage was first built in 1780 by Mr. Wm. Heffernan, and was a thatched house until 1830 when it was rebuilt by one of the family, Mr. Jno. Beary, whose widow now occupies it. It is about 60 feet long, 20 feet wide, and is 2 story high.

Newpallas

-- Inhabitants

2

Newpallis

-- J. O'D.

Situated on the middle of the E. boundary of Garrane-more, and in the N.W. corner of Garranebeg, townlands, on the main road from Limerick to Tipperary, and also on the road from Cappamore to Grean, crossing nearly at right angles.

Newpallas, commonly called the New Line, is the beginning of a village, having at present (1840) 5 houses in it, viz., a licensed public house which is also a Post Office, a School House and 2 houses with groceries. It is intended to build an Established Church at an expense of £900, capable of containing 80 persons. Three of the 5 houses are 2 story high, including the School House, which was built in 1820 at £300 by the Erasmus Smyth Board. There are 50 to 20 boys and girls attending daily, of whom 10 are Protestants, the rest Roman Catholics. The Master is paid £20 per annum from the above mentioned Board, and is provided with an house and garden.

Linefield House

-- Inhabitants

3

Lynefield Linfield -- Barony Map
-- J. C'D.

Situated in, and near the middle of, the W. boundary of, Linfield Td., to the S. of the road from Limerick to Tipperary, and N. of the road from Pallasgrean to Caherconlish.

This house, the seat of Darby O'Grady, Esq., was built in 1792 by Counsellor Michael L. Apjohn, and repaired since 1820 by D. O'G. It is 4-story high, 3 of which are

Linefield House (contd.)

of brickwork, and the underone with the corners &c. of cut stone. It is seated on a small eminence, from which is a great prospect. It is estimated at about £6,000.

Thampull na Corriga

-- Inhabitants

The Rock Church (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Teampul na Carraige, church of the rock.

Situated in the extreme S. end of Linfield Td., and about 5 chains S.W. of Carrickcollum.

This is a small burial place, about 140 feet long and 24 feet broad, situated in a green field. It was much used heretofore, but is disused now except for children.

Closh a tsloe

-- Inhabitants

5

Pit of the Multitude (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Clais a' t-Sluagh, pit or trench of the multitude.

Clashatloe

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the extreme S.E. point of Ballytarsna Td., and about 2 chains N. of the road from Pallas to Herbertstown.

There is a small valley of this name. It is concave and about 2 chains in diameter and 20 feet deep, with some water in it in winter, but dry and green during the summer.

Knock See Finn

-- Inhabitants

Cnoc Suidhe Finn, hill of Finn's sitting.

Seefin occurs very often.

Knockseefin

-- J. O'D.

Fingall's Table (Eng.)

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the extreme S. part of Lackanaskagh and about 4 chains E. of Carrickanaffrin.

This is a small circular fort, about 20 feet in diameter and 2 feet high, which is placed on a smooth green hill of an oval shape and about 5 chains in diameter. This hill is very beautiful, and is so very elevated as to command an extensive view for several miles around it. Another such table can be seen about 20 miles from it on the County Clare mountain and parish of Kilseely.

Skagh a Pfreaghain

-- Inhabitants ...

Sceach a' Phréachain, the crow's thorn.

Skagh a Pfreaghain (contd.)

Skaghaphreaghaun

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of Ardroe Td.

This is a fort nearly of a square form, about 2 chains wide and 4 feet high, composed of earth, with a level green surface and a few hawthorn bushes growing on its sides.

Cruckaun na guogh

-- Inhabitants

8

Cnocán na gCuach, killock of the cuckoos.

Enockaun/na/guagh

-- J. O'D.

The Cuckoos' Hill (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Situated in the centre of the N. part of Killeenavera Td.

This is a small eminence about 4 chains in diameter. It is green, and around it is chiefly cultivated ground.

Patrick's Well

-- Inhabitants

9

Tobar Phádruig, well of St. Patrick.

Patrick's Well

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. point of Garrison Td., and about 40 feet N. of the road from Pallas to Oola &c.

It is a spring well of very good water with a small rivulet flowing from it.

Thobar Heela

-- Inhabitants

10

Tobar Shile. Celia's well.

Toberheela

-- J. O'D.

Cecily's Well (Eng.)

-- Inhabitants

Situated in Nicker Td., about 1 chain W. from the E. boundary, and about 2 chains S. of the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

This is a small spring well, about 2 feet wide, and of very good water.

Thobar a Ghaddie

-- Inhabitants

11

Tobar a' Ghadaidhe, well of the thief.

Toberagaddy

-- J. O'D.

The Thief's Well (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Situated in the N.E. corner of Kilduff Td., about 3 chains E. of the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

Thobar a Ghaddie (contd.)

This is a spring well in a green field. It is about 3 feet wide and of very good water.

Thobar na Gloria

-- Inhabitants

12

Glory Well (Eng.)

-- Inhabitants

Tobar na Glóire, well of the glory.

Tobernagloria

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S. end of Corelish Td., and about 5 chains S. of the road from Pallas Grean to Herbertstown.

This well is placed on the face of a small hill in a green field. It is 3 feet wide, and of very good spring water. There is a hawthorn bush at it.

Thobar na Rughilly

-- Inhabitants

13

Tobar na Ruchaille, well of the spancel.

Tobernarughilla

-- J. O'D.

Situated in Linfield Td., about 3 chains to the west of Templenacarrige.

This well was some time ago held in sacred veneration, and devotions were performed at it; but all this has ceased some time back. It is a good spring, and has a small rivulet flowing from it.

Thobar a Isassony

-- Inhabitants

14

Tobar a' tSasannaigh, well of the Saxon.

Toberatassony

-- J. O'D.

The Englishman's Well, als. The English's Well -- Inhabitants

Situated in the S.E. corner of Knocknacrohy Td., and about 3 yards N. of the road from Tallas Grean to Herbertstown.

It is a small spring well, 3 feet wide, and of excellent water.

Glann a trohaun

-- Inhabitants

15

Gleann a' tSrutháin, glen of the streamlet.

Glenatruhaun

-- J. O'D.

The Valley of the Stream -- Inhabitants

Situated on the N. side of Sunglen Td., W. of Knockna-

Glann a trohaun (contd.)

grean, and E. of Knocknacrohy, townlands, and is the boundary of the two latter.

This is a small valley or glen, through which runs a small rivulet from some of the spring wells on the hills. as above mentioned.

Thobar a yarrane baun

-- Inhabitants

16

Tobar a' Ghearráin Bháin, well of the white horse.

Toberagarraunbaun

-- J. O'D.

The White Horse's Well -- Inhabitants

Situated in the N.W. corner of Knocknacrohy Td., about 1 chain S. of the W. boundary.

This well is about 3 feet wide, and is covered overhead. It is excellent spring water, and has a small rivulet flowing from it.

Thobar a Lunaght

-- Inhabitants

17

Tobar a' Leamhnachta, well of the new milk.

The Milky Well (End.) -- Inhabitants

Toberalunaght

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. corner of Knocknacrohy Td., about 5 chains N. of Toberatassony, and in Glenatruhaun.

This well is 3 feet wide, of excellent water, and springs out from the Hill of Knocknacrohy, which hill with the other hills joined to and in union with it is said to be the best supplied with water in Ireland. It is said to have 365 wells, or "as many as there are days in the year". When other wells are dry in summer, these, weeping in all parts, keep the surrounding plain watered.

Derk House

-- Inhabitants

18

See Townland name. J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of Derk Td.

This house is the seat of Hiffernan Consadine, Esq., and was built some time before 1800, at the expense of about £6,000. It is 2 story high, and is seated on an eminence, from which is an extensive prospect.

Mount Catherine

-- Inhabitants

19

See Townland name. J. O'D.

Situated in the middle of the N. part of Mountcatherine Td.

Mount Catherine (contd.)

This house is the seat of Henry Smithwick, Esq., and was built in 1760 at the expense of about £1,000. It is 2 story high.

Landscape

-- Inhabitants

20

Landscape

-- J. O'D.

Situated in Ballyvoneen Td., and on the S. side of 'the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

This house was built in 1824 by Michael Lloyd Apjohn, Esq., at the expense of about £600. It is 2 story high.

Sunville House

-- Inhabitants

21

See townland name. J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of Sunville Td.

This house is the seat of Thomas Kerney, Esq., and was built in 1826 at the expense of about £3,000. It is two story high, and is seated on an eminence commanding a good view.

Corrig a neahy

-- Inhabitants

22

Carraig an Eithigh, rock of the lie.

Carrickaneahy

-- J. O'D.

The Rock of Lies (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Situated in the W. end of Glen Td.

The face of this rock is about 60 feet high. It is nearly perpendicular, and on the top and on each of its sides is green pasture land. It is about 20 feet broad.

Corrig Chullom

-- Inhabitants

23

Carraig Choluim, Columb's rock.

Carrickcollum

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. end of Linfield Td., on the boundary between same and Bunavie Td., and about 4 chains S. from the road from Pallas Grean to Caherconlish.

This rock is about 50 feet high, and is about 2 chains from one end to the other. Each of its sides and the top are planted with trees. The face, which is perpendicular, is ornamented with the strata, which grow upward like pillars and present a handsome appearance like a white-washed wall.

Corrig a Naffroinn

-- Inhabitants

24

Carraig an Aifrinn, rock of the Mass.

Carriganaffrin

-- J. O'D.

The Mass Rock (Eng.)

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the S.W. corner of Lackanaskagh Td., and about 4 chains W. of Fingall's Table (See under Knockseefinn).

This rock, which is a beautiful glen, is almost circular, about 80 feet in diameter and 5 feet higher than the surface of the ground. It is said to have got its name from Mass having been celebrated on it by a Fr. O'Brien (whose relative is the present Revd. T. O'Brien Costelloe, P.P. of Abington). He celebrated Mass on the rock with the consent of the Bishop, who was sending him to France. After the Mass he exclaimed: "If you send me to France, send Knockgrean with me." And the Bishop, seeing him so fascinated by the beauty of the famous hill, permitted him to stay at home.

I do not believe this story. J. O'D.

Thobar na Skehe

-- Inhabitants

25

Tobar na Sceiche, well of the thorn bush.

The Hawthorn Well (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Toberaskeha

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S. part of Nicker Td., and about 12 chains S. of Nicker Chapel.

This is a spring well of good water. It is on the face of a green hill, and at it grew a thorn bush from which it was denominated.

Corrig Leagh

-- Inhabitants

26

Carraig Liath, the grey rock.

The Grey Rock (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Carrickleagh

-- J. O'D.

Situated in Knockderk Td. and within 1 chain of the E. boundary.

This rock, which is almost round, is about 12 feet in diameter. It is limestone, and is placed in a valley.

Barna (Village of).

-- Inhabitants

27

Bearna, a gap.

Barna

-- J. O'D

Barna (contd.)

Situated on the junction of the Tds. of Treanmanagh, Plaukarauka, Ballynaclogh and Gortnacoolagh, also at the crossing at right angles of the two roads from Pallas Grean to Oola and from Newpallas to Emly &c.

This village contains about 20 houses, all of mud. Two are licensed public houses. It is placed on rising ground.

Keating's Well

-- Inhabitants

28

Tobar a' Cheitinigh, Keating's well.

Keating's Well

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S. corner of Kilduff Td.

This well is about 3 feet wide, of good spring water, and has a small rivulet flowing from it. It is situated in a green field.

Fallas Grean (Village)

-- Inhabitants

29

Sráid na Pailise, the street of Pallas

Pallas Grean

-- J. O'D.

Pallas

-- Barony Map

Pallis Grean

-- County Map

This village is situated on the union of the Tds. of Pallas, Moymore, Pallas Hill and Sunglen, and on the road from Kilteely, &c., to Doon and Cappamore.

It contains about 40 houses, chiefly of mud construction and low, except J. Apjohn's which is 2 story high. Three of the houses are licensed public houses. It has 4 yearly fairs, and a market one day preceding each fair, to which nothing is brought except pigs, the only stock in demand even at the fairs. In the W. end of this village is the ruin of the Established Church, in being until 1839 when the roof was taken of it to permit it undergo repair. But it is considered that a new Church will be erected in Newpallas, and this ruinous one condemned.

Micker Chapel

-- Inhabitants

30

See townland name. J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of the S. end of Nicker Td., 2 chains S. of the road from Pallas to Caherconlish.

This Chapel was built in 1833 at the expense of £700 by the parishioners. It is a small neat building in the form of a cross, and is capable of containing about 1,000 persons.

-- Inhabitants

31

See townland name. J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of the N. part of Kilduff Td., and S. of the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

Of the origin and of the inmates of the castle there is no account by the inhabitants. It is about 70 feet high to the top of the chimney, and only one half is standing; the other half has fallen to the ground. It is about 12 feet wide.

The Most of Pallas

-- Inhabitants

32

Móta na Pailise.

Moat of Pallas

-- J. O'D.

Moat -- Barony Map

Situated in the N.E. corner of Cloghaderreen Td.

This most or fort, which is circular, is one chain in diameter. The top of the most is green and flat, and the sides gradually viden to the base, which is about 40 feet from the summit. It is composed of earth, and the inhabitants of the distict, in digging about it, find small bones, etc., mixed with the earth.

Rath Cree

33

Not known to the people by this name.

Ballinacree is the name of a townland in the adjoining parish of Latten Co. Tipperary.

Situated at the middle of the E. boundary of the Td. of Longstone.

This fort, which is circular, is about 2 chains in diameter, and 5 eet high. It is composed of earth, and around it grow sme hawthorn bushes. Its centre, instead of being flat asis usual, is concave, in depth about 6 feet, from which cause it is called Rathcree, or the "Heart Fort".

End of the Parishes of Grean

